



## **CLUB BYLAWS**

### **ARTICLE I: CLUB PURPOSE**

**Section A: Name** – The name of this club shall be Stock Race Car Series (SCRS).

**Section B: Purpose** – Stock Race Car Series is organized to promote the authentic restoration, preservation, and competitive use of historic NASCAR racing cars in a fun filled club atmosphere. SCRS exists solely for the recreation and pleasure of its members.

#### **Section C: Club Authority**

1. This Club shall have and exercise, said powers to be exercised in accordance with these Bylaws.
2. The entire government control and regulation of this Club and entire ownership handling, encumbering and disposing of the club's property and assets is hereby veiled and reserved exclusively for members acting in accordance with these Bylaws.
3. The Club shall issue no shares of stock nor divide any dividends or profits among its members.

### **ARTICLE II: MEMBERSHIP & DUES**

**Section A: Eligibility** - Membership shall be open to owners of historic racing cars who are interested in competing, upon payment of the dues as outlined in Section B.

1. The Club is nondiscriminatory as to race, religion, national origin and sex.
2. SCRS requires all drivers to be qualified and licensed by approved sanctioning bodies.
3. New drivers may be required to complete an SCRS "Rookie" program or be approved by the competition committee for participation.

**Section B: Dues** – Dues shall be paid annually:

- New members for 1st Historic Car: \$250
- Each additional Car: \$100
- Renewal membership: \$200 for 1st Historic Stock Car and \$100 for each additional Car
- Associate membership: \$50.
- Business membership: \$250 Includes Link on website

### **ARTICLE III: OFFICERS**

**Section C: Election** –The Executive Committee of Directors shall be elected by the Club membership by the biennial ballot, mailed to all existing (paid) members. The Officers Shall be elected by the Directors immediately following the biennial ballot from the membership.

**Section A: Officers** – The officers of the club shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary/ Treasurer, and Competition Directors, all of whom shall be elected by the Executive Committee.

**Section B: Eligibility** – Officers must be existing (paid) members of SCRS.

**Section D: Term** – The Executive Committee members shall serve for a period of two (2) years or until his successor is duly qualified and elected.

**Section E: Vacancy** – If the office of any Executive Committee member becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, disqualification, or otherwise, the remaining Executive Committee members (Directors) shall elect a qualified successor from the Club's membership to serve until the next biennial election.

### **ARTICLE IV: DUTIES OF DIRECTORS**

#### **Section A: Authority of all Directors**

The directors shall act in discretion for the best interest of the club and have full authority to transact all business of the club and control all the Club properties. However, the board shall have no power to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose of, or encumber, the club's real estate without such

authority previously given at a special or regular meeting of the members of the corporation.

**Section B: President** – The President shall be authorized to perform all powers as set forth in the Bylaws. It shall be the duty of the President to:

- Only vote at meetings of the Club members and the Board of Directors in the case of a tie.
- Preside over all meetings of members and decide all questions of order.
- Act as an ex-officio member of all standing committees.
- Sign all legal documents for the club with the approval of the Directors.
- Create committees and appoint members, with the advice and consent of the Directors, as deemed necessary and advisable for the proper operation of the Club.

**Section C: Vice-President** – It shall be the duty of the Vice-President to:

- Perform all of the duties of the President in the event of the absence or disability of the President.

**Section D: Secretary** – It shall be the duty of the Secretary to:

- Have custody of the club charter, Bylaws, membership certificate list and all other records pertaining to the club's business, all of which shall be opened to any member of the Club at reasonable times during the day.
- Execute all legal documents with the President as required by the President and authorized by the Directors.

**Section E: Treasurer** – It shall be the duty of the Treasurer to:

- Collect all dues, fees, and assessments.
- Maintain, at all times, current records of the status of such funds and make reports thereon at all meetings of the Directors and members.

- Disburse the funds of the club upon authorization by the Directors with checks signed by the President or Treasurer, or their designees, as reflected in the minutes and on the appropriate bank signature cards.

## **ARTICLE V: MEETINGS**

**Section A:** Meetings – Meetings of the Executive Committee and Officers shall be held at such a time and place as may be determined by the President. Notice of all meetings shall be given at least two days in advance and all Directors and Officers shall be duly notified.

**Section B:** Special Meeting – Meetings may be also called upon the written request of three (3) members of the Executive Committee.

**Section C:** Quorum – A majority of members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum.